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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Anybody wishing to

          3  speak needs to fill out these forms, and anybody

          4  wishing to speak if you cell phone goes off, that

          5  cancels your ability to speak at the Committee

          6  hearing. Don't turn that on and use it as an excuse,

          7  Ms. Toole.

          8                 Good afternoon. I am Council Member

          9  Philip Reed, Chair of Consumer Affairs Committee,

         10  and I know that if we're careful I will find my

         11  opening statement in here somewhere.

         12                 We're joined today also by Council

         13  Member Charles Barron of Brooklyn and I'm sure that

         14  other colleagues of mine will be here as the hearing

         15  moves along.

         16                 This afternoon we're going to be

         17  focusing on the towing industry. First we're going

         18  to be learning about Intro. 562. This is a bill that

         19  the Mayor is advancing, which would push back the

         20  registration dates for the towing businesses and tow

         21  truck drivers. This is largely an administrative

         22  change, and I believe the Commissioner or her

         23  representative will explain why she thinks it's

         24  necessary.

         25                 In addition, we're going to be doing
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          2  a status check on the towing industry itself. As

          3  most of you know, the Department of Consumer Affairs

          4  is responsible for licensing towing businesses and

          5  tow truck drivers in the City.

          6                 In 1987, the Council created a

          7  comprehensive set of towing laws designed in part to

          8  rid the industry of "chasing." The practice of tow

          9  trucks racing dangerously to accident sites to get

         10  business and other unscrupulous behavior.

         11                 As part of our oversight

         12  responsibilities this Committee wants to learn

         13  whether the licensing requirements are working and

         14  if not, how we can improve them.

         15                 I've also received several calls over

         16  the last few weeks from towers who have concerns in

         17  a few other areas. They have raised questions about

         18  DCA's new inspection requirements, about possible

         19  rate changes and about the continuing problem of

         20  chasing in the industry.

         21                 We wanted to give them a forum to

         22  discuss these issues, and I'd like to explore how

         23  towing is working from the consumer's perspective.

         24                 So, thank you all very much for

         25  coming, and I think the Administration is being
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          2  represented by Pauline Toole and Andy Eiler. Could

          3  you please come and take chairs at the witness table

          4  there?

          5                 Good afternoon.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Good

          7  afternoon.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Maybe you'll

          9  introduce everybody there?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: For the

         11  record, I am Pauline Toole, Assistant Commissioner

         12  at the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         13                 To my right is Alba Pico, who also is

         14  an assistant commissioner at the Department and has

         15  worked there for 20 years and oversees licensing and

         16  collections. Andy Eiler is our Legislative Director

         17  and Jonathan Mintz is the Deputy Commissioner.

         18                 Commissioner Dykstra asked us to

         19  extend an apology for not attending. She had a long

         20  scheduled meeting that could not be changed. We

         21  thank you for this opportunity to appear before you

         22  to comment on Intro. 562, which would change the

         23  expiration date for licenses and plates issued under

         24  the towing law, and to provide you information for

         25  your oversight hearing on the towing industry.
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          2                 Turning first to Intro. 562. DCA

          3  licenses tow truck companies, tow trucks and tow

          4  truck drivers. The bill would change the expiration

          5  date for all license plates from December 31st of

          6  odd number years to June 30th of even number years

          7  for tow trucks company licenses and tow truck plates

          8  and to October 31st in even numbered years for tow

          9  truck driver licenses issued by the Department.

         10                 The Department proposes this change

         11  in order to make the license process more efficient

         12  to all of the categories of business we handle,

         13  including the towing industry.

         14                 At present, the DCA is inundated with

         15  license renewals at the end of the calendar year,

         16  when we process 19,000 license renewals. By contrast

         17  no licenses expire in October, and only 2,000

         18  licenses expire in June of even number years.

         19                 This change will spread out the

         20  licensed processing workload more evenly throughout

         21  the year. Currently, licenses that expire on

         22  December 31st include 2,800 laundry licenses, 1,500

         23  laundry jobber licenses, 6,500 retail cigarette

         24  dealer licenses, 608 tow truck companies, 3,032 tow

         25  truck driver licenses, 1,935 plates issued for tow
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          2  trucks, 2,516 health department licenses, which we

          3  process at our licensing center.

          4                 For whatever reason, many businesses

          5  in these categories don't come in to be licensed

          6  until the last moment, creating chaotic situations

          7  with long lines of applicants stretching through the

          8  building lobby. DCA licensing staff frequently stays

          9  late into the night in order to ensure that all of

         10  the businesses that line the corridors are dealt

         11  with. It is a particularly bad time of the year to

         12  require people to work late hours, because many

         13  families are celebrating the holiday season.

         14                 DCA licensing staff is not permitted

         15  to take annual leave during these weeks. Spreading

         16  out the license renewal workload will improve morale

         17  and efficiency. It will reduce personnel cost and

         18  decrease the waiting time to process applications.

         19                 And moving the truck expiration date

         20  to the summer months also ensures that the necessary

         21  truck inspections will be conducted under much

         22  better weather conditions than prevail in December.

         23                 The bill would also authorize the

         24  Department to pro-rate the license fee for the

         25  extended license term that results from the
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          2  alteration of the license expiration date.

          3                 This is not an additional fee. It

          4  pro-rates the existing fee for the additional months

          5  of the license. As you know, fees only cover the

          6  cost of operations they do not raise revenue to the

          7  City.

          8                 I now would like to provide you with

          9  information about the towing industry for your

         10  oversight hearing. The DCA commends the Chair and

         11  this Committee for holding the oversight hearing.

         12  The Administrative Code governing towing is the most

         13  detailed of all of the license law DCA administers.

         14  The DCA and the New York City Police Department work

         15  closely to ensure that the laws are followed. We

         16  find, however, that this is a recalcitrant industry

         17  which offers one excuse after another for why

         18  existing laws and rules either should not apply to

         19  them or should mean something else.

         20                 There are roughly 600 tow companies

         21  licensed by the DCA, only a fraction of that group

         22  does not present regulatory problems to the agency,

         23  and by that we mean licensed businesses with no

         24  consumer complaints, no license law violations, no

         25  LDC6 violations from the NYPD.
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          2                 Under the law, DCA licenses the

          3  towing industry and the NYPD administers programs

          4  for towing cars from City streets and accident

          5  scenes. There are exceptions, but in general the

          6  Administration believes that the DCA NYPD

          7  enforcement initiative has successfully stopped tow

          8  trucks from accident chasing.

          9                 The Police Department has more

         10  information about this enforcement, and we

         11  understand that they will be providing that to you.

         12                 Licensed tow truck companies can

         13  apply to participate in the Directed Accident

         14  Response Program DARP, the Rotation Tow Program,

         15  ROTOW or evidence vehicle programs.

         16                 DARP participants must have been

         17  licensed for at least one year, and if approved,

         18  they are permitted to do DARP tows only in the zone

         19  where the business is located.

         20                 DARP towers are dispatched by the

         21  NYPD, and are called on a rotating basis and must

         22  respond to the scene within 30 minutes of receiving

         23  the NYPD call.

         24                 Any tower that wasn't called by the

         25  NYPD and that responds to an accident scene is in
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          2  violation of the law.

          3                 The ROTOW program operates in a

          4  similar fashion to DARP, but exists for the purpose

          5  of towing abandoned and stolen vehicles from the

          6  City streets. There are approximately 211 DARP and

          7  180 ROTOW participants.

          8                 The DARP and ROTOW programs were

          9  included in the law when the licensing of towing was

         10  transferred from the PD to the DCA in 1987. The

         11  ROTOW zones were originally created in 1978 around

         12  police division geographic sectors that were

         13  composed of varying numbers of whole police

         14  precincts. The police division boundaries were,

         15  however, eliminated a number of years ago, but the

         16  ROTOW zones retained the precincts that had been

         17  originally assigned.

         18                 The DARP zones were apparently

         19  created in a similar way, except that this City has

         20  been divided into fewer DARP (26) than ROTOW (33).

         21  DARP zones are also composed of whole police

         22  precincts.

         23                 One wrinkle in the DARP zones is that

         24  six zones that have been formally created for

         25  Manhattan have effectively been merged into two
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          2  zones because otherwise there would be no towing

          3  companies in some of the zones.

          4                 Fees for towing, mileage and storage

          5  for both of these programs, as well as towing from

          6  private property all are set by law.

          7                 Over the past three years, DCA

          8  received an annual average of 227 complaints from

          9  consumers who have been overcharged or

         10  misrepresented by the towing industry. Consider this

         11  small sampling:

         12                 Claudette from Queens was approached

         13  by a tow company representative at her place of

         14  business who informed her that her car was towed

         15  from a private lot and she would need to pay $324 in

         16  cash for its return. She did not have that amount of

         17  cash on her person, but went the next day to collect

         18  her car only to be told by the towing company that

         19  they would not release the car for another four

         20  days, which forced her to pay additional storage

         21  fees.

         22                 What's wrong with this picture?

         23  Company demanded cash. They're not allowed to do

         24  that. Towing charges are excessive and don't comply

         25  with the law, and towing and storage would only have
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          2  been $108 if she had been allowed to collect her car

          3  on her first trip to the towing company.

          4                 Sean from the Bronx was involved in

          5  an accident and his car was towed from an arterial

          6  highway by the selected tower. The company pressured

          7  him to sign forms to authorize them to fix his car.

          8  He elected not to sign the forms, but to have his

          9  insurance company inspect the car to determine cost.

         10                 The vendor refused to permit the

         11  insurance company to inspect the car, and instead

         12  told the consumer that the law required them to

         13  dismantle the car prior to the arrival of the

         14  insurance company.

         15                 What's wrong with this picture? The

         16  consumer is being forced to use their service. The

         17  law is being misstated. The insurance company is

         18  being denied access.

         19                 Or Celeste, also from Queens, whose

         20  car was stolen and, luckily, recovered by the Police

         21  Department a few months later. Upon recovery the

         22  NYPD notified her that they found her car which was

         23  towed to an approved site. She went to pick up the

         24  car, expecting to pay the $70 tow charge and $15 per

         25  one-day storage, only to have the vendor demand
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          2  $180. What's wrong with this picture? The consumer

          3  is being grossly overcharged.

          4                 And Mike, from Brooklyn, whose car

          5  was towed from an accident, he went to retrieve the

          6  car the next day and was billed for $211.08. What's

          7  wrong with that?

          8                 Not only did the company overcharge

          9  for storage fees, but they charged an additional

         10  illegal yard fee.

         11                 These companies all took advantage of

         12  people who were in difficult situations. The

         13  consumers later sought DCA's help in obtaining

         14  refunds for the overcharges. DCA mediators

         15  diligently pursue or are pursuing a fair settlement

         16  in all of those cases. And in all of those cases, in

         17  fact, the companies have agreed to pay.

         18                 This is but a glimpse of the

         19  treatment consumers all too often receive from

         20  towing companies. To give you a fuller picture, the

         21  Department focused its effort on resolving

         22  outstanding violations from the past three years. We

         23  offered settlements at a lower fine amount than a

         24  defendant would receive at a hearing in order to

         25  avoid conducting administrative hearings.
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          2                 These outstanding violations had been

          3  issued to 250 different towing companies. This is 40

          4  percent of all licensed towing companies. There is

          5  not another licensed industry that comes even close

          6  to having that many of its members cited for

          7  violating the law under which they are permitted to

          8  operate.

          9                 DCA's own licensing staff have

         10  detected shifty business practices. Namely, a towing

         11  company tries to sell the business to others knowing

         12  that the licenses are not transferable. They add on

         13  new corporate owners, change the name of the company

         14  and then move. Then they attempt to keep their

         15  licenses if there hasn't been a status change, and

         16  as if their eligibility to participate in DARP and

         17  ROTOW hasn't changed. But if they followed the law,

         18  and came to DCA with the above changes, we would

         19  tell them they would have to submit a new

         20  application, undergo the required background checks,

         21  and wait a year before being placed on the programs.

         22                 Another scheme used to circumvent the

         23  law is for a company to bring on an additional

         24  corporate officer, wait six months or so, have the

         25  original owner leave the company. Technically this
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          2  is not a new company and thus it qualifies to remain

          3  on the DARP and ROTOW program.

          4                 DCA has been contacted by numerous

          5  insurance companies, all of which complain about a

          6  deceitful practice that drives up consumer costs.

          7                 If a car is towed under the DARP or

          8  ROTOW programs, the owner has the right to have a

          9  car taken to a repair shop of her choice and the

         10  right to have the vehicle examined by a

         11  representative of an insurance company.

         12                 All too often the towing companies

         13  demand that the owners sign out his or her car prior

         14  to permitting the insurance company representative

         15  to examine it.

         16                 Contrary to applicable rules

         17  governing these programs that expressly provide

         18  otherwise, towing companies misrepresent that by

         19  signing out his or her car the owner no longer

         20  qualifies for the fees set by law for storage.

         21                 The tow company instead seeks to

         22  collect whatever charge it sees fit to impose.

         23                 Such charges are in turn covered by

         24  the insurance company, thus increasing costs which

         25  are eventually passed along to consumers.
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          2                 DCA currently licenses 600 tow truck

          3  companies and about 3,000 tow truck drivers.

          4  Licenses are issued for two years, and until this

          5  local legislation you are considering becomes law,

          6  licenses expire on December 31st of odd number

          7  years.

          8                 The fee for every towing company is

          9  $600 which includes one tow truck. There is an

         10  additional $600 fee for each additional truck. The

         11  license fee for each tow truck operator is $20.

         12  There is $50 for each tow truck company -- tow truck

         13  that passes inspection. Finally, each tow company

         14  must post either a $5,000 bond or pay $200 into the

         15  trust fund, and most elect to pay the $200 into the

         16  fund.

         17                 Anticipating the rush of renewals,

         18  DCA mailed renewal packages to all current licensees

         19  on October 8, on or about October 8th, 2003. We have

         20  sufficient staff in our licensing center to

         21  accommodate all renewals, as well as a handful of

         22  new applicants who might appear.

         23                 The Department guarantees that all

         24  companies and drivers who file for renewal by

         25  December 1st, 2003, will receive their licenses and
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          2  have their plates affixed as required by December

          3  31st, 2003.

          4                 We cannot offer that guarantee to

          5  businesses that file later than December 1st, and we

          6  certainly can't offer that guarantee to the

          7  imprudent tow truck company that shows up on

          8  December 29th, 30th or 31st demanding to be licensed

          9  immediately.

         10                 As required by law, DCA must check

         11  for proof of insurance, workers comp, corporate

         12  status, valid driver's licenses, valid vehicle

         13  registration, and conduct a background check.

         14                 This is not an instantaneous process.

         15  This is a process that the businesses know

         16  intimately because most have been licensed for some

         17  time.

         18                 This year, though, there is a new

         19  wrinkle. DCA is reinstating an old procedure that

         20  had been waived in recent years. Every tow truck

         21  must be inspected by DCA and the medallion affixed

         22  to the truck under the watchful eyes of DCA

         23  inspectors.

         24                 We will do our part to ensure that

         25  those who file timely applications will be renewed
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          2  by their expiration date of their license.

          3                 Please be assured that DCA will

          4  strictly enforce compliance with the license law,

          5  which means any company not licensed by December

          6  31st, 2003, will be removed from the DARP and ROTOW

          7  program.

          8                 Participation in those programs is

          9  only opened to licensed businesses with inspected

         10  trucks.

         11                 Thank you for your consideration. If

         12  you have questions, we'll try to answer them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you want to

         14  explain the attachments?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We had

         16  attached I think the map of the ROTOW zones and the

         17  list of ROTOW and DARP zones in the City. Someone

         18  wanted to know about the geography of it, we tried

         19  to show what was there. That's what we have.

         20                 Once again, this is something that

         21  the Police Department knows better than we do, but

         22  we gave you the info we had on that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you for your

         24  testimony, Ms. Toole. It's certainly thorough and

         25  raises a lot of issues. Before I get into some
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          2  questions that I have here, I also wanted to

          3  introduce other members of the Committee. Council

          4  Member Joe Addabbo from Queens, and Council Member

          5  Sanders, James, Jr., from Queens as well.

          6                 Your testimony, you license all the

          7  tow truck companies, right?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

          9  sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you had some

         11  numbers here I wrote down. 211 and some other number

         12  you said which was problematic.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: 211 DARP

         14  participations and 180 ROTOW participants.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: The

         16  problematic companies, we went back for a three-year

         17  period because the Commissioner was examining all

         18  the business practices of the agency, and determined

         19  that the agency had not been industrious in pursuing

         20  the violations that had been brought against tow

         21  truck companies, so Mr. Mintz' staff worked at

         22  compiling those and bundling them so instead of

         23  having one violation at a time, every violation

         24  attached to a company was put together in one file

         25  and it ended up being 250 companies who had
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          2  outstanding violations for the past three years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Outstanding

          4  violations that were issued by DCA?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I'm

          6  going to let Mr. Mintz step in on this.

          7                 Generally what happens is the NYPD

          8  issues LD6 violations, and many of them are

          9  converted by DCA to license law or padlock law

         10  violations, and in addition some violations come

         11  through, some consumer complaints, when we do

         12  inspections.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: All I

         14  would add --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Why don't you

         16  identify yourself for the record, please.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Good

         18  afternoon. I'm Jonathan Mintz, Deputy Commissioner

         19  at DCA.

         20                 Commissioner Toole is right. We hear

         21  from the police either because they find unlicensed

         22  activity and transmit that information to us to

         23  adjudicate, or we hear from the police in regular

         24  reports on which companies who are on a DARP or

         25  Rotow list fail to appear or fail to answer the
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          2  phone when called, we adjudicate those, and then a

          3  third category would be those tow companies that are

          4  associated with consumer complaints that now come in

          5  via 311.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, you have the

          7  authority, DCA has the authority to revoke licenses

          8  still?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         10  sir.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you clearly

         12  have the opportunity when renewal comes to not

         13  renew?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         15  sir. Depending on the circumstances, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, I'm just

         17  curious. I'm glad that we are having this hearing,

         18  because it sounds like it's more problematic in the

         19  industry than perhaps I even was aware of, but how

         20  many licenses have you -- if you're saying that you

         21  have 40 percent of the industry that's problematic,

         22  how many licenses have been revoked or how many have

         23  not been renewed as a consequence of complaints and

         24  outstanding violations?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  to deal with the 250, what happens is they're a

          3  violation, so at this point they're allegations but

          4  backed up with some reasonable amount of evidence,

          5  we believe, and since the towing companies elected

          6  not to settle them by going through a settlement

          7  process, all of those will be calendared for a

          8  hearing or have been calendared for a hearing at our

          9  adjudicatory tribunal. You know, one cannot -- that

         10  process has to go forward so that the towing

         11  companies have their day in court, we would then be

         12  able to follow up, pending those decisions.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: If I could

         14  also just add? In addition, in consultation with the

         15  police, we undertook the, sort of the large

         16  settlement effort that you referred to with those

         17  outstanding violations indicated to us from the

         18  police.

         19                 The police had hoped that by sending

         20  that signal and giving the companies an opportunity

         21  to move forward after paying those fines, that they

         22  would in fact be able to be productive members of

         23  those rotation programs. It's the reason that we

         24  engage in that massive settlement effort.

         25                 And I should also point out that we
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          2  were actually sued by the industry for trying to

          3  settle those cases, although I'm happy to say that

          4  that case was dismissed.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, it seems that

          6  over half of the people in the industry are not

          7  involved in either one of those programs, correct?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

          9  there are roughly 600 companies and more than half

         10  are not in those programs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, the violations

         12  that we're talking about in the incident of problems

         13  are not necessarily unique to those two programs,

         14  and I would also just state to Ms. Toole, that it's

         15  sort of emblematic of the problem, this is not a new

         16  250, so while I understand that we need to go

         17  through the proper process, I guess my question

         18  based on what you're saying is how many licenses

         19  have been revoked or not been renewed in the last

         20  two years?

         21                 Would you identify yourself, please.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Alba

         23  Pico, Assistant Commissioner for Licensing and

         24  Collections.

         25                 About 41 licenses.

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: About 41 licenses

          3  total in the last two years have been revoked?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Revoked

          5  or not renewed.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Revoked or not

          7  renewed.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see. That's a

         10  process that you can do arbitrarily or there's a

         11  review?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: It's a

         13  process that could be done through our adjudication

         14  division or our renewal time. It's a process also

         15  based on the fingerprint records, or who is coming

         16  into renewal, the owner, the person that we licensed

         17  previously, or is it a new owner coming in? Then it

         18  becomes a new application and their license that was

         19  there before is not renewed.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have any

         21  sense or comment on why the industry seems to be so

         22  difficult or has so little self-policing in it that

         23  you've got these problems that you've discussed?

         24  This is 40 percent of all licensed towing companies

         25  you're saying are in some kind of violation? Do you
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          2  have some idea of why that is?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I don't

          4  think we can explain it exactly, but obviously this

          5  is an issue that the legislative body of the City

          6  has grappled with many times, witnessed sort of

          7  specificity of the law. You know, it's a question to

          8  ask the industry. We would like for the industry to

          9  be more compliant. It would certainly give consumers

         10  greater confidence, and it would be less onerous for

         11  us to administer and it would just be better for all

         12  concerned.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I don't disagree

         14  with you, Ms. Toole. I'm just trying to understand.

         15  That's a fairly high number, 40 percent of an

         16  industry that's in violation of the rules. So, it

         17  sounds to me like it's sort of a way of doing

         18  business more than the exception.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think

         20  the Department's view is that there is a very

         21  precise law that has not always been applied and we

         22  are, as part of a review, directed by our

         23  Commissioner ensuring that the law is going to be

         24  completely and fairly applied that begins with the

         25  licensing law regulations that we will be
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          2  implementing this year, requiring that all those

          3  trucks go back to our inspection station so they're

          4  inspected, so our inspectors can make sure that they

          5  put those little medallions on and they're on the

          6  right trucks.

          7                 There's a big problem there. We

          8  understand people switching their medallions, so

          9  we're taking the tools that are available to us and

         10  enforcing them. The law has certain specifications

         11  that --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just one second,

         13  Pauline, if you don't mind.

         14                 So, the medallion is similar to what

         15  we see on a cab?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: It's a

         17  license plate, it's about --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It's assigned to an

         19  individual truck and you have the vin number?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         21  sir. I'll let Alba talk about that.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Yes, one

         23  of the requirements is that they submit the

         24  registration, the DMV registration, so we have to

         25  make sure that the medallions are assigned to the
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          2  truck that has the proper weight, the proper

          3  lettering, and if it's any rate information needed

          4  that is assigned to the proper truck.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If there's any rate

          6  information you said?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Yes. If

          8  you are on the DARP program you need to have your

          9  rate.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And that's supposed

         11  to be posted on the truck?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Visible from the

         14  outside of the truck?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Visible

         16  from the outside. The medallion number have to also

         17  be visible from the outside, and our complaint

         18  number now 311 has to be visible on the outside

         19  also.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Why are we changing

         21  --

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         23  Councilman, I just wanted to go on and finish my

         24  answer to your previous question.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Because

          3  in addition to enforcing the licensing law sections,

          4  we've reviewed the code and there are certain basic

          5  requirements in the code, such as requiring

          6  companies to get prior approval, if they change

          7  their corporate ownership, or have their license

          8  become void. If they change their partnership, same

          9  rule. If they change their location, same rule. And

         10  one of the things that appears to have been a

         11  repeated pattern is for people to make all sorts of

         12  changes and not record them as they're required to.

         13  The line has been drawn, that's not permitted and we

         14  will enforce against that.

         15                 There are companies that register,

         16  try to register, they don't have tow trucks, but you

         17  can't have a tow company without a truck, so they

         18  won't be licensed. I mean, there's companies that,

         19  as you heard from some of our citations, refuse to

         20  accept credit cards. It's a requirement. Those

         21  violations will not be tolerated, and we will wake

         22  them up and we will take them to hearing speedily,

         23  and not sort of let three years elapse.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I want to, I know

         25  my colleagues have questions and I think it would be

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  useful if we stick to dealing with Intro. 562, in

          3  terms of the first round of questioning, and then we

          4  have questions about the industry. Obviously we're

          5  peeling back a lot of issues here, or the cover is

          6  on a lot of issues. So, I just want to stick to 562

          7  for a minute.

          8                 Why should the towing licenses, these

          9  be changed and not change the others? You're saying

         10  that you have a stack-up at the end of the year, so

         11  why have we decided to do these?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

         13  we looked at the different categories and it made a

         14  lot of sense in the first place, for the reason we

         15  stated in our testimony, doing the truck inspection

         16  in December is complicated. Doing it in June or

         17  October at a different time of the year makes a lot

         18  more sense.

         19                 There are 600 tow truck companies

         20  with an affiliate 3,032 tow truck driver licenses

         21  and 1,900 plates. They all, if you take those out as

         22  one category of towing, it will make the whole

         23  process easier.

         24                 Could it have been a different

         25  category? Possibly. But this one made sense to us
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          2  logistically.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And now you are

          4  talking about both the industry and the drivers

          5  renewing their licenses, right? And it's my

          6  understanding that there's now, the agency is

          7  imposing a truck inspection?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We're

          9  not imposing it. We're following the law that

         10  requires it, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And, so, the truck

         12  itself has to be inspected every two years?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         14  sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, that's going to

         16  remain the same? It's not every year?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: No, I'm

         18  sorry, it's per renewal. So, every two years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The concern that I

         20  know has been raised by the industry is that,

         21  according to some in the industry, it's not possible

         22  for the agency to inspect every truck between now

         23  and the end of December, nor is it really fair to

         24  ask them to sort of line up and have that done.

         25                 There is some question about whether
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          2  or not there's an extension just to be able to

          3  physically do, let me finish, please -- to finish

          4  the process. We are halfway through November so we

          5  really have about 45 days to inspect what you just I

          6  think said was 600 trucks?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: No,

          8  1,900 trucks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Nineteen-hundred

         10  trucks. How many inspection stations are there?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: There's

         12  one inspection station.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And that's run by

         14  DCA?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         16  sir.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And what are the

         18  hours that that operates?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think

         20  generally it's open from some time in the morning,

         21  seven.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes. It's

         23  early in the morning. I think it's 7:30 through the

         24  day.

         25                 We have devoted, as you pointed out
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          2  yourself earlier, there is a substantial amount of

          3  resources necessary to make sure that we're doing

          4  this right. We have devoted those resources, we have

          5  transferred staff, we have taken people out of their

          6  current duties in order to make sure that this

          7  happens, and we have publicly and repeatedly said

          8  that we will meet that deadline.

          9                 If I could just add, this sort of

         10  request for an extension is the hallmark of I think

         11  what may have made it so difficult over the years to

         12  enforce relatively clear and specific laws in this

         13  industry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, I'm not

         15  interested in that at the moment. All I'm trying to

         16  do is understand. How many of these trucks, we're

         17  talking about 1,900 did you say? So, how many of

         18  them have been inspected based on this new proposal

         19  so far?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Of the

         21  600 companies, only 25 have come in to renew their

         22  applications and at that point they then can make an

         23  appointment to go to the testing station to have the

         24  inspection done.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So they have to do
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          2  that first?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: No,

          4  they do the license application first.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I think that's what

          6  I'm saying.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Oh, I'm

          8  sorry.

          9                 Yes, and then they make an

         10  appointment to go, and for companies that have two

         11  or three trucks, they don't all have to come at one

         12  time, the company can schedule them.

         13                 But what I think we're suggesting is

         14  that the Department has waived that inspection for a

         15  number of years because frequently the companies

         16  come in on December 27th and they'll be lined up and

         17  they'll all demand like an extension letter or an

         18  immediate license issuance, and it's just not

         19  humanely possible to do that.

         20                 It is humanely possible if the

         21  industry acts responsibly and they begin to come in

         22  and apply for their renewals and make appointments

         23  to have their trucks inspected for them to be

         24  inspected.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, DCA is
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          2  committing to being able to inspect all of these

          3  trucks if people come in now and get their license

          4  renewed, their company license, and the individual

          5  drivers have to have a license as well, right? So

          6  all that has to be done, then they get to go to the

          7  inspection.

          8                 Now, where is the inspection located?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Our test

         10  station is in Brooklyn.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: In

         12  Greenpoint on Miropol Street (phonetic) -- Meserol

         13  Street (phonetic).

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: And this

         15  is what the industry was notified of in October,

         16  that was part of that notification.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And so it's your

         18  testimony that all of that can be done, and all

         19  those trucks can be tested if people do this in an

         20  orderly fashion?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: And as

         22  we guarantee, if they come in and file their

         23  applications by December 1st. Thereafter we can't

         24  offer that guarantee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So you're offering
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          2  a guarantee that the truck itself will also be

          3  inspected by the end of the year?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

          6                 Are there questions from my

          7  colleagues on this bill?

          8                 Council Member Barron.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You asked most

         10  of my questions.

         11                 So, the extension, you're saying in

         12  October there's very few, little or none, so that

         13  that would be a good month, and then June there's

         14  very little, which means those too. What problems

         15  would that bring for the tow industry? Any that you

         16  can think of?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: None

         18  that we're aware of.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, if you

         20  extended it, that shouldn't be a problem for anybody

         21  in terms of service or anything else?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: No. The

         23  only thing is the Department of Finance Taxstamp

         24  (phonetic) a lot of the times is probably around

         25  that time also, so that's the only problem.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: What is that?

          3  Say that again.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO:

          5  Department of Finance Taxstamp (phonetic), it

          6  depends on the weight of the truck expires also

          7  around that time. So that's the only problem that I

          8  see.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. Pico, could you

         10  pull that microphone, or maybe pull it down, then it

         11  may be easier to hear you.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Okay,

         13  sorry.

         14                 The Department of Finance, they have

         15  a B (sic) called Taxstamp (phonetic), depending on

         16  the weight of the truck. A lot of the times expires

         17  around that time in June.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: It expires in

         19  June?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Yes.

         21  They have to renew it and it's a fee that they have

         22  to pay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So that can be

         24  problematic.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: It's the
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          2  only problem I see.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Let me ask you

          4  something else.

          5                 So, there's 1,900 trucks roughly, 600

          6  companies.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And even in,

          9  this relates more, I guess I can wait on this

         10  question which is more for the DARP.

         11                 Okay, I'll wait on that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         13                 Council Member Addabbo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair.

         16                 Good afternoon. Thank you for your

         17  time and testimony today, and in relation to the

         18  proposed legislation, just to see if possibly I'm on

         19  the same page or the same way of thinking, I have a

         20  proposal and a question and I'd like your opinion on

         21  it, to comply with the proposed legislation today,

         22  if the DCA was to possibly hire more inspectors, who

         23  do the inspection, those who do the inspection,

         24  which would increase jobs, do the job possibly more

         25  efficiently, more quickly, and possibly even in a
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          2  sense raise quicker revenue for the City, what would

          3  be DCA's opinion about that proposal?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, you

          5  know, obviously if that works its way appropriately

          6  through the budget process, I think you're right,

          7  additional inspectors can generate additional work

          8  faster.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Again,

         10  something that Council Member Barron brought up, as

         11  well as the Chair, in 1,900 trucks, one station, how

         12  long does it take to inspect the truck, on the

         13  average?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Thirty

         15  minutes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thirty

         17  minutes?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And obviously

         20  understanding the budgetary process, including more

         21  inspectors, I'm thinking that they may actually pay

         22  for themselves obviously in the way of efficiency,

         23  and, again, bringing in the additional revenue or

         24  quicker revenue with licensing, so I'm hoping they

         25  can pay for themselves, the additional inspectors.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well,

          3  again, you know, I can't help but smile at the

          4  thought of an additional inspector or two, but I do

          5  want to say, I want to reiterate from Ms. Toole's

          6  testimony, we are not concerned about our ability to

          7  meet this deadline. We have devoted the resources

          8  that we think will work. That's why we have smart

          9  people doing smart scheduling, and as soon as the

         10  companies make their appointments, we'll be able to

         11  see them and inspect their trucks.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay. But

         13  additional inspectors would make the process move a

         14  little bit quicker, wouldn't it?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MINTZ: How

         16  could it not?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         20                 It would seem to me it's a

         21  responsibility of the agency to get this

         22  accomplished and that if we're seeing in the middle

         23  of December that, in fact, that's not doable, we'd

         24  certainly like to hear there'd be folks, if they've

         25  done everything else, they're not out of business

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  because for whatever reason. You know, there are a

          3  lot of holidays coming up here. So, is this

          4  inspection agency open? Tomorrow is Veterans Day,

          5  are you open?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We are

          7  not, and therefore we did not schedule any

          8  appointments for tomorrow.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, there's a lot

         10  of days that we're not in business here, between now

         11  and the end of December, so if you guys get this

         12  accomplished, we may give you the efficiency award

         13  for the City, but I would certainly think that by

         14  the middle of December, if you feel that given those

         15  folks who have come and done everything else that

         16  they're required to do, not asking that anybody on

         17  the 29th or the 30th get, you know, dispensation,

         18  but certainly for those people who have come and

         19  done the paperwork, if in fact it is problematic, it

         20  would seem to me that we would try to offer them

         21  some kind of extension or some letter that

         22  acknowledges that they have a date to come in, et

         23  cetera.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: The

         25  thing that's really helpful to really bear in mind
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          2  is that the trucks can be inspected after they've

          3  come and completed their licensing paperwork and

          4  been authorized for renewal, and it is a little

          5  troubling that as few as 20 have come, 25 in the

          6  past month, when, you know, prudently they could

          7  file their paperwork and move forward.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: When did this go

          9  out, Pauline?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We

         11  certainly could assign inspectors to the station on

         12  a variety of dates and times, but it's not -- at

         13  this point we don't need to do that, we don't need

         14  to have people there on Veterans Day because the 25

         15  companies who have come and filed their paperwork

         16  and have followed the process and have been

         17  diligent, we know we can handle them, they're like

         18  either done or will be done shortly.

         19                 The next group, the other 575

         20  companies, those are worrisome. But, you know, if

         21  they file by December 1st, or the first week of

         22  December, no problem, every single one of their

         23  trucks will be inspected.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Now, I'm going to

         25  risk something here and I don't need an outburst.
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          2                 I presume most people sitting over

          3  here are in the industry, so I want to see a show of

          4  hands of everybody sitting over on this side who has

          5  filled out this paperwork that Commissioner Toole is

          6  talking about.

          7                 Nobody over here in this whole

          8  left-hand, your right side, has filled out? Who has

          9  filled out -- she says there's 20 companies, is

         10  there anybody here representing those 20?

         11                 Two of you have done the paperwork.

         12  Does everybody understand my question? It can't be

         13  that complicated.

         14                 You didn't understand the question?

         15  She says only 20 companies have responded to the

         16  letter that went out on the 1st of October.

         17  Everybody understand that part of the question?

         18  Okay.

         19                 How many of you sitting here have

         20  responded? One. One person, that's it in the whole

         21  room. Nobody else has responded. Are you boycotting?

         22  You can tell me when you come up to testify. Okay,

         23  you'll get a chance when you come up to testify.

         24  We've got a problem in here.

         25                 This is your fault, Addabbo. I think
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          2  this is your fault.

          3                 Council Member Sanders.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 Good afternoon. Good afternoon, all.

          7  I'm no great mathematician, but it seems to me just

          8  you're following the Chair's line of thought, if

          9  there are just a certain amount of days before

         10  December 31st, and there are numerous holidays in

         11  this period, Christmas quickly comes to mind,

         12  Hanukkah, let's see, God knows what else, don't

         13  forget Turkey Day, Quansa. Never forget Quansa.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We won't forget any

         15  of them, but what's your question?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Has anyone

         17  done the math to figure out how many trucks per hour

         18  you would need to do to get all 1,900 trucks done in

         19  this period?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Our

         21  Director of Enforcement did the math and assures us

         22  that it's all doable.

         23                 She's not here or we would tell you

         24  exactly what her breakdown was, but she's got it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: I'm sure.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I would

          4  also just add, if I could, that that was sort of

          5  part of a signal that we were trying to send to the

          6  industry, to kind of be very clear, here's the

          7  deadline, here's the guarantee, and we were willing.

          8  Of course, it would be nice if over the course of

          9  this last month we had been able to knock a bunch of

         10  them off, but that wasn't possible because they

         11  haven't come in, but whatever it takes, we will live

         12  up to our end of the bargain.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Well, I want

         14  to move on away from this question in just a minute.

         15  I know the Council member has a question. In

         16  relation to this piece of legislation?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes. Just in

         18  terms of this piece of legislation, something's

         19  fundamentally wrong with one side or the other that

         20  what is it with this process that they won't come

         21  in?

         22                 I mean, you're guaranteeing people

         23  that if you come in by a certain time we will

         24  guarantee you everything, and only 25 out of 600

         25  have come in.
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          2                 Is there something in the process

          3  that is turning the company off, the tow company

          4  off? Is it too complicated? Is it something about,

          5  are we not receiving it in a timely fashion? Is it

          6  too much paperwork? What is it?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: I

          8  haven't actually heard complaints. I heard one when

          9  I was waiting right now. I have been there for 20

         10  years, since towing came in in '88, and it has been

         11  every two years it has been common that the industry

         12  comes in on the last minute, the requirements are

         13  almost the same requirements that you have to submit

         14  on the new application. I don't see it as being a

         15  complicated process, except that this year we added

         16  inspection requirements. But every year December

         17  31st, December 24, you're there until 10:00 because

         18  the industry comes in on the last minute.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Then usually

         20  you get a rush of the other 500 and some odd?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: We get a

         22  rush of every single one. You have all those

         23  licenses expiring so you have lines all the way down

         24  to the street, and this is very common of our

         25  business.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Just let me

          3  understand real quick.

          4                 So, usually you get about 20, 30 in

          5  good time, then in the last minute 500 come rushing

          6  in?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: I would

          8  say the beginning of December you get from December

          9  1st to December 15th you might get maybe like 200

         10  companies, and then the remaining is at the end of

         11  the month, the month of December, and then you have

         12  January and February, because after 60 days you have

         13  to reapply, so we know the day that a lot of the

         14  companies will be there.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: And

         18  Councilman, just to follow up, one of the things

         19  that we think will make this effective is the

         20  Department is not going to grant extensions, so

         21  those companies that are not licensed on December

         22  31st will be removed from the DARP and ROTOW

         23  programs, and we think that that is a powerful

         24  incentive for them to follow the deadline and get

         25  licensed.

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Isn't it true

          3  that only half the companies are even involved in

          4  the DARP and ROTOW programs, correct?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So that

          7  wouldn't affect the other 300 who are not involved.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: That's

          9  true.

         10                 But the 300 that are, I mean, you use

         11  the carrots and the sticks that you have at your

         12  disposal, and that's what we're trying to do.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. Toole, when you

         15  thought through this, did you speak with people in

         16  the industry, get their ideas?

         17                 Ms. Pico.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: About

         19  the change of expiration dates?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: I did

         22  talk to one of the members of the towing

         23  association, and he's the one that raised the

         24  concern to me about the DMV Department of Finance

         25  stamp. He raised that concern to me and the fee that
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          2  will be charged for the extra licensing, the

          3  pro-rated fee. He raised those two concerns to me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But nobody raised

          5  the concern about the timing on it?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: No, not

          7  at all.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you spoke to

          9  one person?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: I spoke

         11  to one person that represents the Towing

         12  Association.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Who was that?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Mr.

         15  Richard Siegel.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Did you seek out

         17  anybody else? I don't know if Mr. Siegel represents

         18  the entire industry.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: Not that

         20  I recall, no.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you have two

         22  different dates here. You've got June 20th for the

         23  tow companies and October 31st for the tow drivers;

         24  is there a reason why that's staggered and not just

         25  get it all done at the same time?

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Part of

          3  the reason is to make sure that when the drivers

          4  come in with their applications they are connected

          5  to licensed companies, so that by staggering it we

          6  won't have that question mark.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see. Okay.

          8                 Moving onto the industry at large,

          9  because I want to try to have enough time to hear

         10  from the industry.

         11                 There is a thing called the "Tow

         12  Advisory Board," this is something that was created

         13  legislatively by this very wise Council I think,

         14  right?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: When was the last

         17  time that it met?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: It has not

         19  yet met in this Administration. I'm not positive

         20  when it met in the last Administration. I wasn't

         21  here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What is it mandated

         23  to do?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: To help

         25  advise the agency on matters of interest to the
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          2  consumers in the industry in towing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: To the consumers,

          4  as well as the people in the industry, right?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So they haven't

          7  met, so you didn't ask them what they thought about

          8  these new deadlines and these new inspections?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Correct.

         10  Correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So Ms. Pico spoke

         12  to one person who represents the industry and you

         13  all decided to change the rules.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, yes.

         15  I mean, I should add that this industry rep is an

         16  ever-present go between with the industry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That may be, but

         18  you have an advisory board here that hasn't been

         19  convened. What's the purpose of having it?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We have

         21  been working to convene this advisory board. It's a

         22  lengthy process, which, unfortunately, is not yet

         23  complete. It involves --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Who serves on it?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: At the
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          2  moment nobody.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: What the

          5  Commissioner did was put together a list within a

          6  month of getting into her position, put together a

          7  list of representatives of the tow industry, of the

          8  insurance industry, the police, some consumer

          9  representatives, to try to put together something of

         10  a different board that under our understanding it

         11  had been comprised of in the past. That list was

         12  sent to City Hall for their review, it was also sent

         13  to the Speaker's Office for his review and his

         14  staff's review, and the next step in the process is

         15  a time-consuming step, it involves background checks

         16  from the Department of Investigation, and

         17  unfortunately not all members of those who were

         18  invited cooperated in that investigation. It took a

         19  long time. It is taking a long time.

         20                 We're currently in the process of

         21  trying to identify replacement candidates for those

         22  who either have refused to participate in this next

         23  inspection background check, or who don't pass it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: When do you think

         25  this process is going to be finished? And I guess a
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          2  part of that, is there a mandate for how many people

          3  serve on this?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: It's nine.

          5  Nine members.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So when are we

          7  going to have these people in place?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, I

          9  can't speak, unfortunately, for the Department of

         10  Investigation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Does the Mayor take

         12  this thing seriously or not?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: The Mayor

         14  does, and, in fact, they approved the list, I think

         15  in relatively decent timing. It's a complicated

         16  industry in terms of the vetting, but we --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If you're in the

         18  industry and you're operating, your company has

         19  already been vetted, right?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, it's

         21  a different process.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. Toole is

         23  shaking her head yes. It sounds to me --

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

         25  you're vetted for certain things. I mean, you're
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          2  fingerprinted to make sure that you're not a felon,

          3  but the DOI background check probably does cover

          4  other items that the background check to be licensed

          5  as a tow truck company doesn't include.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: For

          7  example, conflicts.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I understand how

          9  difficult this background process is, frankly,

         10  onerous if we have other boards, that it's very

         11  difficult, and I think we have experienced having

         12  people that we've asked to serve on   board, you

         13  know, end up saying no because the process is just

         14  too invasive. But it seems to me that this is an

         15  advisory board worth having, and I will urge us to

         16  get that done. I will find out from the Speaker's

         17  Office -- are you suggesting that the Speaker's

         18  Office is holding up the process?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: No, not at

         20  all.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh, okay.

         22                 It's possible that, you know, the

         23  Speaker has made one mistake in the last two years,

         24  but that wouldn't be it, okay.

         25                 The whole issue of --
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I'm sorry,

          3  I just want to assure you, we will certainly try to

          4  get it done as quickly as possible.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, we're going

          6  to have a follow-up hearing in order to vote on this

          7  piece of legislation. In fact, I think our next

          8  hearing is on December 1st, which is a time when we

          9  might vote on this bill. So, before we do, we're

         10  going to want to have some clear answers to where

         11  we're at.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We'll give

         13  you a progress report.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Dates, numbers, the

         15  whole thing.

         16                 I understand that this legislation

         17  and this advisory board was put in place to try and

         18  respond to the issue of people's concerns about

         19  chasing and overbilling, et cetera, et cetera,

         20  right?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         22  Principally chasing, I think.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What is the

         24  experience that your agency is having with that now?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,
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          2  we think chasing in its traditional form is no

          3  longer a problem. The legislation and the Police

          4  Department enforcement has --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you want to just

          6  briefly define what you mean by traditional chasing?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

          8  Traditional chasing is when there is an accident and

          9  a number of tow trucks respond to the scene.

         10                 Under the DARP program only the NYPD

         11  radios and calls one company and that's the

         12  authorized tower, and what we've been told, although

         13  this is more appropriately an NYPD question, is that

         14  generally tow trucks are not racing to the scene of

         15  the accident, although there are exceptions.

         16                 But a more common practice is a sort

         17  of soliciting or steering practice where it's not a

         18  tow truck, it is an affiliate of a tow truck company

         19  driving a regular car that goes to the scene and

         20  passes out cards trying to steer the victim to a

         21  body shop or an attorney that's working with the tow

         22  company. That's not expressly prohibited by law. It

         23  might be something that could be looked into, and

         24  once again, the Police Department would have a

         25  better handle on that.

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So a car might pull

          3  up behind somebody that's broken down on the Henry

          4  Hudson and hand them a card?

          5                 MR. EILER: If I can expand on this,

          6  one of the things on the chasing under the old law,

          7  the consumer was permitted to call a tow truck at

          8  the scene, and that was the incentive for the tow

          9  truck to race to the scene to get the consumer to

         10  say tell them you called me; what was prohibited

         11  when the law was changed a number of years ago that

         12  consumers cannot call their own tower, which means

         13  only the police dispatch truck is supposed to be

         14  there.

         15                 That, we think, has done a big change

         16  in the chasing picture, because there's no incentive

         17  for them to chase there, since the police would,

         18  technically speaking, bar a non-called tower from

         19  taking the car.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm looking at a

         21  question here, I don't want to sound like I'm that

         22  bright, but the staff has asked me to find out some

         23  members of the industry claim that chasing still

         24  exists but it's done by licensed towers who ignore

         25  the rules of the police programs.
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          2                 Any comment on that?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think

          4  the Police Department are the people on the scene

          5  and that's a question that should be addressed to

          6  them.

          7                 We know anecdotally that that

          8  sometimes occurs but have been told by our Police

          9  Department contacts that that's infrequent.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         11  Barron.

         12                 MR. EILER: I want to just add one

         13  thing on that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry, just

         15  tell people who you are.

         16                 MR. EILER: I am Andrew Eiler,

         17  Director of Legislation, DCA.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         19                 MR. EILER: That change in the law

         20  also did give the consumer the right or opportunity

         21  to direct the tow company that's called, the DARP

         22  tower, to tow the car to the place of the consumer's

         23  choice. So that's what creates the possibility that

         24  people will try to get there in a car and then

         25  suggest to the consumer, that's the steering issue,
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          2  suggest to the consumer that he direct the tower to

          3  tow it to some place else.

          4                 It's not chasing in the old form, but

          5  there is a way for creating serious problems that

          6  can happen which would not be specifically chasing.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just want to

          8  ask you, I just want to get some clarity here now,

          9  if there are 211 companies involved in DARP, right?

         10  Or 180 in ROTOW, and 600 companies, so how would

         11  other companies making any business? If you're

         12  saying that they roll up on the scene and the police

         13  will not allow them to take them, so how do they

         14  make any business on accidents?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

         16  there are other programs. They would not be making

         17  business from accidents but they might be towing

         18  from private lots, you know, perfectly legitimate

         19  kinds of towing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So they won't

         21  participate in the accident?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: No,

         23  that would not be an accident scene, but that's how

         24  they would make their money, from other kinds of

         25  towing.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But most of

          3  the towing companies do rely heavily on accidents,

          4  would you say?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I

          6  really have no idea. That's a question better

          7  addressed to the industry.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right,

          9  thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Anything else that

         11  you want to add?

         12                 Thank you all very much.

         13                 In no particular order, but since

         14  they mentioned your name, Mr. Siegel. Richard

         15  Siegel. I think that's the same Siegel, right?

         16                 Joseph Robles, Norman Teitler, Murray

         17  Rude.

         18                 Who is Peter? Is Peter O'Connor here?

         19                 MR.  O'CONNELL: O'Connell.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: O'Connell? I'm

         21  sorry. That's your handwriting.

         22                 And not that I want him to come up,

         23  but is Mr. Rubenfeld here?

         24                 Sergeant, thank you.

         25                 Okay, I'm going to ask you all to be
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          2  brief. And I don't know if there's a particular

          3  order, but we're here to talk about 562, and we want

          4  to hear from you about the industry and what's been

          5  said. But you need to tell me how you feel about

          6  this piece of legislation, although I don't see

          7  anybody on here that says they're in favor -- no,

          8  yes, they are, Rubenfeld is in favor. I see. Oh,

          9  maybe I'm wrong, okay. I'm happy to be wrong.

         10                 Let's start with you, Mr. Rubenfeld.

         11  Oh, you're Mr. Rubenfeld, I'm sorry. Are you the

         12  gentleman that came down from Albany?

         13                 MR. RUBENFELD: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: O'Connol over here,

         15  okay. Why don't we start with you, sir.

         16                 MR. O'CONNELL: My name is Peter

         17  O'Connell. I represent the Empire State Towing

         18  Recovery Association. That's a statewide association

         19  of tow truck operators. We have around 120 members

         20  in and around New York City. I also represent the

         21  Towing and Recovery Association of America, and the

         22  Conference of Northeastern Towing Associations. I

         23  created a bit of a niche for myself it seems.

         24                 ESTRA, my client, generally approves

         25  of Intro. 562, the June expiration date is much more
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          2  convenient for the industry. It's at a better time

          3  of year, there are less financial obligations of the

          4  time. It would result in an improvement to the

          5  industry.

          6                 A couple suggestions. And we will be

          7  getting into the inspection process, I don't know if

          8  this will be possible or not, but the bill is

          9  designed to keep a current license in place until

         10  December 31, and then the renewals, the staggered

         11  renewals will take place in 2004 to 2006.

         12                 I am wondering if it would be

         13  possible to simple let the current licenses go until

         14  June of 2004, which would give an additional amount

         15  of time to complete this inspection process.

         16  Something to think about.

         17                 In the absence of that, I do think

         18  that we will need to allow businesses to operate on

         19  temporary permits because I don't see how they're

         20  going to get the job done.

         21                 To answer the question on Intro. 562

         22  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, you would

         24  agree that all of them should be able to come in and

         25  fill out these forms for themselves. You don't know
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          2  how we can get all the truck inspections done, is

          3  that what you're saying?

          4                 MR. O'CONNELL: Yes, sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But would you agree

          6  that they all ought to be able to show up and fill

          7  out the paperwork for themselves and their company?

          8                 MR. O'CONNELL: I do. I think that

          9  some of the people who are more attuned to the City

         10  problems could answer that better than I can, but I

         11  know one of the prime considerations is one of

         12  finance's. They are in effect moving the requirement

         13  to pay your license fees up by a couple of months to

         14  get this paperwork done.

         15                 If you have ten tow trucks, you're

         16  looking at about $7,500. Not an easy nut to crack,

         17  particularly with other obligations coming due at

         18  this time of year.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And all of the

         20  money is due at the time of inspection?

         21                 MR. O'CONNELL: At the time of the

         22  licensing, when you file your application forms, you

         23  have to pay for your upcoming licenses, all in one

         24  whack.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You have to pay for
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          2  your upcoming licenses for your truck?

          3                 MR. O'CONNELL: All of your trucks and

          4  your business and your employees.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And how much is it

          6  per truck?

          7                 MR. O'CONNELL: It's $600. And the

          8  math is there. That's quite staggering.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And this is moving

         10  forward, making the license earlier than you had

         11  anticipated?

         12                 MR. O'CONNELL: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do they take credit

         14  cards? Do they take credit cards, the

         15  Administration? No, you don't. Check or cash? Yes.

         16                 So, the record to show that the

         17  Administration says just a check. Check or money

         18  orders. That's what the Administration says.

         19                 Anything else, sir?

         20                 MR. O'CONNELL: Should I get into the

         21  inspection issue?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If you want to

         23  briefly. That was your two-minute clock, but I took

         24  some of your time.

         25                 MR. O'CONNELL: Thank you. I was
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          2  trying to do some quick math when the Deputy

          3  Commissioner was speaking, and she kind of ducked

          4  one of your questions. You asked how many trucks had

          5  you inspected to date. There have been no trucks

          6  inspected to date, even among the 25 companies who

          7  filed their applications. At least that is what I've

          8  been told.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Did you make an

         10  appointment?

         11                 MR. O'CONNELL: I'll let Mr. Siegel or

         12  Mr. Teitler respond to that because they're more

         13  intimately involved than I am.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         15                 MR. O'CONNELL: We are headed for a

         16  train wreck here. I do not see this process getting

         17  done in time.

         18                 I can see companies are being forced

         19  out of the Rotow program because of the lateness of

         20  trying to put this program together.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: One second for me.

         22  If we don't pass this legislation, then we're going

         23  to stay the way we have been, right?

         24                 MR. O'CONNELL: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Wouldn't that be

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  easier?

          3                 The way it stands right now, people

          4  would have -- could I have somebody from the

          5  Administration please to help me understand this?

          6                 MR. O'CONNELL: That has no bearing on

          7  the current inspection issue, the legislation before

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please, Pauline,

         10  sit over there if you need to.

         11                 My question is, right now, the

         12  current law, if we just allow that to stand, the

         13  majority of these tow truck operators still have to

         14  come in by the end of this year?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         16  sir. If they want to have their license renewed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If they want to

         18  have their license renewed, right?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And then they also

         21  have to have the truck inspected?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So that's not

         24  changing. So there's imposition of all this money

         25  earlier than they had expected in next year.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: No. If

          3  a company wanted to have its license renewed it

          4  would have to come and pay the licensing fee by

          5  December 31st. So, if they pay it a month earlier by

          6  December 1st, they'll be in an orderly process. If

          7  they wait til December 31st, that certainly is their

          8  choice, but they will not be licensed, and if they

          9  participate in DARP and ROTOW, they will be removed

         10  from those programs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: At the time that

         12  they come in for this renewal, they have to pay the

         13  whole fee for everything, even the inspections at

         14  that time?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         16  sir. And the inspections are $50, or $25? There's

         17  not an inspection fee that's been written into the

         18  regulations.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But it's $600 for

         20  the truck, and it's $600 for the company?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO:

         22  Six-hundred dollars for the truck, but when you pay

         23  $600 to the company, that includes one truck.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, and the

         25  drivers, how much do they have to pay?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PICO: The

          3  drivers don't have to be inspected, but they're

          4  renewal, which is $20, and it's usually done by the

          5  drivers themselves, you know, whoever is the driver

          6  will renew themselves and pay $20.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, the

          8  Administration doesn't see where there's a financial

          9  hardship to this piece of legislation.

         10                 MR. O'CONNELL: We have a bit of a

         11  moving target here also. The letters that went to

         12  the industry would guarantee that they would be

         13  registered in time if they filed by November 1. Now

         14  the Administration has taken the position that,

         15  well, it can still be done on December 1.

         16                 I don't know, this seems to be a very

         17  loose playing with facts and figures here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, that's a

         19  month reprieve. You ought to feel lucky to have

         20  that, right?

         21                 Okay, let's hear from Mr. Teitler.

         22                 Introduce yourself for the record,

         23  please.

         24                 MR. TEITLER: My name is Norman

         25  Teitler. I'm the Executive Director of the
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          2  Metropolitan New York Towing and Autobody

          3  Association, which is the trade organization

          4  representing the towing industry in the City of New

          5  York.

          6                 I want to thank the Chairman for

          7  scheduling this hearing to consider matters of

          8  urgent concern to towing companies and licensees who

          9  face renewal of the business licenses by December

         10  31st of this year.

         11                 Since this is the first time I've

         12  testified before specific members of this Committee,

         13  let me just inform you for a second of what our

         14  association is about.

         15                 We've been in existence for 13 years.

         16  We represent approximately 85 percent of this

         17  hard-working emergency service industry. We include

         18  businesses that perform only towing, businesses that

         19  have towing and collision repair, arterial highway

         20  towers, towers that work with the sheriffs and the

         21  marshals program and companies that participate in

         22  Police Department towing programs.

         23                 During that time we've worked with

         24  the former Speaker, Majority Leader, members of this

         25  Committee in the past and other members of this
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          2  Council, and we have always had what I believe to be

          3  a positive working relationship.

          4                 Metropolitan has been influential in

          5  bettering our industry in pushing for fully

          6  licensing, including all trucks that led to the

          7  licensing of exempt licensees. We worked with the

          8  Police Department in implementing the SARD program a

          9  number of years ago, which was a pilot program set

         10  by this Committee and the Council, which was allowed

         11  to sunset.

         12                 We publish a bimonthly magazine that

         13  is sent out to all our members, which is called

         14  Autovoice, which informs the industry of the

         15  ever-changing laws, rules, interpretations and

         16  requirements that govern their business.

         17                 We have always believed in any member

         18  who received a violation in our industry is innocent

         19  until proven guilty, and is entitled to be defended.

         20                 In fact, when represented by either

         21  an attorney or lay representative associated with

         22  the association, the licensee is found not guilty

         23  more than 70 percent of the time.

         24                 First, in regard to Intro. Number

         25  562, the Association has no objection to changing
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          2  the current expiration date of tow truck company

          3  licenses. However, it is imperative that the tow

          4  truck driver licenses expire on the same dates as

          5  tow truck company licenses.

          6                 DCA under its rules holds business

          7  owners responsible for the actions of their

          8  employees. By having a common expiration date as is

          9  the procedure to date, owners will know that at the

         10  same time they renew their company license, each

         11  driver must renew their individual license.

         12                 This way a business owner knows that

         13  all licenses pertaining to his or her towing

         14  operation are renewed at the same time.

         15                 We understand this law also allows a

         16  pro-rated fee to be charged in order to convert to

         17  the new expiration date.

         18                 Nothing else has been stated about

         19  how or when this fee would be corrected. To some

         20  businesses, this means an additional payment of

         21  several hundreds of dollars. To others, several

         22  thousands of dollars.

         23                 This issue must be addressed before

         24  the bill goes forward. We cannot allow this decision

         25  to be left solely to the Commissioner's discretion.
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          2                 May 31st of every year, every single

          3  year, not every two years but every single year,

          4  every business that has a vehicle on the road that

          5  is considered a commercial vehicle and weighs more

          6  than 10,000 pounds, is obligated to renew and pay

          7  the City of New York for a commercial use tax.

          8                 In our industry almost all of those

          9  taxes are $300 per vehicle. Most businesses in these

         10  hard economic times cannot go and pay the money much

         11  before it has to be paid. So, most of that money is

         12  paid somewhere between May 15th and May 30th.

         13                 If the licenses expire on June 1st,

         14  we now have businesses who will be required to pay

         15  $600 a truck, a pro-rated fee of something above

         16  that amount, plus $300 for the tax stamp. A highway

         17  company that has 30 trucks, we're talking about now

         18  30,000, 40,000 dollars. That's a lot of money.

         19                 I understand the agency's problem

         20  with the December 31st renewal date, if they had met

         21  with industry in some way, if there was a Tow

         22  Advisory Board, if they had called some people in,

         23  we're not asking for power. Owners who have gone

         24  through fingerprint checks or have been licensed by

         25  the agency, they would have understood the concerns,
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          2  and maybe we would have had a date other than the

          3  June 1st date.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Teitler, you

          5  are just about out of time, but you signed in here

          6  in favor of this legislation.

          7                 MR. TEITLER: I'm in favor of it, but

          8  I'm not solely in favor of splitting drivers and

          9  owners to different dates. They should be at the

         10  exact same time on that bill.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What percentage

         12  would you estimate in this industry are mom and pop?

         13  Fifty percent? In other words --

         14                 MR. TEITLER: Ninety percent.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- One guy, one

         16  family owned one truck?

         17                 MR. TEITLER: Eighty-five percent.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: They own one or two

         19  trucks?

         20                 MR. TEITLER: One, two, three trucks.

         21  On the inspection, I can tell you two weeks ago our

         22  Association submitted the renewal application of a

         23  company who paid the Department $9,000. They asked

         24  that company to bring all of their trucks, in

         25  essence putting them out of the business for the
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          2  day, to the inspection station. That didn't happen.

          3  They set the inspections for this morning. That

          4  company brought three of their trucks for

          5  reinspection. No misunderstanding, all of these

          6  trucks have been inspected, they would not have been

          7  issued a medallion if the truck had not originally

          8  been inspected.

          9                 I know of no place in the

         10  Administrative Code of the City of New York or the

         11  rules of the City of New York where it's mandated

         12  that the trucks be reinspected on payment of the

         13  renewal of the license every two years. I didn't

         14  hear anything from the Administration, a site --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm not sure I

         16  understand your point there.

         17                 MR. TEITLER: And today, when they

         18  went to the inspection station, the medallions for

         19  the trucks that pass inspection were not all

         20  available, so now there's the issue that I have to

         21  come back again, which is at a cost to business.

         22  None of the tow truck ID cards which were required

         23  to be given to them at the inspection station were

         24  available.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: None?
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          2                 MR. TEITLER: None.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What's the name of

          4  this company that was there today?

          5                 MR. TEITLER: Crown Towing Service of

          6  the Bronx.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You can document

          8  this information.

          9                 MR. TEITLER: The owner was there.

         10  Before we came today we spoke to him on the phone.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is the owner here

         12  now?

         13                 MR. TEITLER: He's not in the room

         14  now.

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         16  AUDIENCE: Yes.

         17                 MR. TEITLER: Oh, he is here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: He is going to come

         19  up here and testify to this?

         20                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         21  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         23                 MR. TEITLER: So, we don't have a

         24  problem with the agency who is short on budget and

         25  doesn't have enough inspectors to send in the
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          2  field.

          3                 The problem is now, because they are

          4  spending time or want to spend the time doing these

          5  inspections, if I want to go into business and I

          6  come as a new mom and pop and pay money to the

          7  agency, I'm told after November 13th I won't have

          8  nobody inspect my business. If I'm a mom and pop

          9  operation with one truck and the truck blows an

         10  engine and I want to replace it with another truck,

         11  there will be nobody to go out and reinspect my

         12  truck.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The question that I

         14  have before I move on, and we may come back to you,

         15  questions.

         16                 MR. TEITLER: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If I have a car, I

         18  have to have that car inspected every year. It

         19  doesn't matter that it passed the inspection in

         20  2003, I've got to get it reinspected. They rotate

         21  it, it depends on, you know, the date. What's

         22  different from that, from inspecting the truck every

         23  two years? I don't understand what your beef is with

         24  having to have the truck inspected again.

         25                 MR. TEITLER: I have no beef with
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          2  inspecting the truck. In the past, for the last

          3  decade, DCA has had usually annually, sometimes for

          4  some companies twice or three times a year, field

          5  inspections. Inspectors go out to the field, they

          6  would see their trucks, they would examine their

          7  trucks, they would look at the business, they would

          8  check their books, DARP and ROTOW companies are

          9  obligated to keep certain information for the police

         10  and for DCA to inspect and things work wonderfully.

         11                 Someone has to explain to industry

         12  why this year, we've been doing this for 13 years,

         13  why for the first time in 13 years did this change?

         14                 And if they wanted these companies

         15  all to come in in advance, I can tell you that the

         16  applications for the companies were mailed, received

         17  no earlier than mid-October, and to drivers they

         18  were only sent out last Thursday or Friday to almost

         19  85 percent of the driver renewals. They were only

         20  sent out literally on the 6th or 7th of November.

         21                 So, I'm not faulting the agency for

         22  trying to do things short staffed, but towing --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What's your

         24  proposal for a remedy of this?

         25                 MR. TEITLER: I'm sorry?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What do you propose

          3  as a remedy to this dilemma?

          4                 MR. TEITLER: I believe that any

          5  company that pays the mandatory fee for renewal

          6  submits all the required paperwork and gets approved

          7  at the Licensing Division of Consumer Affairs,

          8  should be able either to have a medallion, or a

          9  letter allowing that company to operate on the

         10  streets until its trucks are inspected.

         11                 I don't think I -- if I'm a business

         12  owner, and I paid two years ago money for a license

         13  that's good til December 31st, and I come in on

         14  December 20th and pay the City $10,000 to renew my

         15  license and submit all the required insurance,

         16  workers compensation, registrations and everything

         17  else to date, why should I not be allowed to

         18  continue operating in business? What do I tell my

         19  employees on January 2nd, you're out of a job?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, you tell them I

         21  forgot to file it sooner.

         22                 MR. TEITLER: But the problem is

         23  money.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, that's the

         25  problem. All right.
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          2                 MR. TEITLER: The problem is money.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          4                 Mr. Robles, how are you? Do you want

          5  to testify?

          6                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please identify

          8  yourself for the record.

          9                 When the light is off, the mic is on.

         10                 MR. ROBLES: How is that, better?

         11                 Okay. Joseph K. Robles, President of

         12  Knights Collision Experts. I'm here this afternoon

         13  representing the six arterial towers of the City of

         14  New York, and in respect to Intro. 562, we are in

         15  favor of it, but since this is an oversight hearing,

         16  we'd like to bring to light some very urgent needs

         17  in regards to rate increases.

         18                 Under Title 11 of the rules of the

         19  City of New York, Chapter 4, entitled Traffic Rules

         20  and Regulations, entitled Road Service and Towing

         21  Rates, defines the current rates that arterial

         22  highway towing permittees are allowed by law to

         23  charge.

         24                 Arterial towing presents challenges

         25  to any towing company, such as procedural
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          2  regulations, adequate staffing, dealing with irate

          3  and/or distressed motorists, keeping expensive

          4  equipment on standby for emergency use and disposing

          5  of unclaimed vehicles.

          6                 Each arterial highway permittee

          7  provides quality service to the motoring public and

          8  to the New York City Police Department. The service

          9  must include timely responses, professional

         10  dispatchers, and staff.

         11                 Accurate record keeping, secured

         12  storage facilities and efficient vehicle and

         13  property handling processes.

         14                 The current rates are inadequate to

         15  allow any towing company that serves the arterial

         16  roadways of the City of New York to survive in

         17  business.

         18                 The arterial towers need realistic

         19  towing rates in order to continue to provide towing

         20  services to the City of New York and its motoring

         21  public.

         22                 Further, the current rates have not

         23  been amended in over ten years to reflect the actual

         24  cost of doing business in the City's economic

         25  environment.
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          2                 The current rates don't reflect the

          3  increased costs of doing business, since their

          4  enactment in 1992, costs beyond the control of any

          5  towing company.

          6                 The City of New York raises taxes and

          7  finds ways to generate money to cover their

          8  ever-increasing operating costs in budgets. Towers

          9  need to be able to adjust their rates as needed to

         10  cover their cost of operations, especially in light

         11  of the fact that the arterial highway rates are set

         12  by law.

         13                 The taxi industry obtains needed rate

         14  increases, subway fares get increased, the bridge

         15  and tunnel tolls get raised. Now it's time for

         16  arterial towers to receive a realistic rate

         17  increase.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Robles?

         19                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm familiar with

         21  this issue --

         22                 MR. ROBLES: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And it's something

         24  that we are looking into changing. We've introduced

         25  some legislation around that. Because of the time,
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          2  if you have some comments on this intro that we have

          3  today, 562, I'd like to hear that, otherwise I need

          4  to hear from these other two gentlemen.

          5                 MR. ROBLES: The only thing I would

          6  add would be, I would agree with Mr. O'Connell, and

          7  perhaps a good idea would be extending the current

          8  license to June of 2004, in order for everyone to

          9  orderly get their trucks inspected prior to the

         10  expiration of those licenses.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

         12                 Yes, sir.

         13                 MR. SIEGEL: My name is Richard

         14  Siegel. I'm the Operation Manager for Metropolitan

         15  New York Towing Auto Body Association. In case I'll

         16  never be able to cover everything in two minutes, I

         17  did have conversation with Ms. Pico regarding the

         18  expiration date. How we learned is, in June of last

         19  year, in the City Record, the Commissioner attempted

         20  to amend the rule changing the expiration dates of

         21  towing categories.

         22                 I commented at that time that while

         23  we didn't have an objection to dates being changed,

         24  at that time they were looking at the month of April

         25  as opposed to June. I testified that the
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          2  Commissioner did not have the power to change law.

          3  Despite the fact that I was told the Commissioner

          4  had lots of power, I testified at the hearing, I was

          5  contacted the following day that the rule was being

          6  withdrawn and that they would go through the City

          7  Council to change the expiration date.

          8                 But as Norman Teitler specified, as

          9  far as the pro-rated cost, that's something that has

         10  to be decided by the Council so companies know ahead

         11  of time what impact it's going to have on them

         12  before the legislation can be voted upon.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         15                 Mr. Rubenfeld.

         16                 MR. RUBENFELD: If I can get a mic

         17  I'll talk to you.

         18                 I am very happy to be here today

         19  because I am going to go home with my wife with the

         20  most bravado that I've had in many, many years,

         21  because of the Chairperson here. She made me wear

         22  this hot, hot sweater, because she says I don't want

         23  you appearing in your suspenders and your shirt

         24  sleeves. I'm going to work her over when I go home.

         25                 Okay, my name is Paul Rubenfeld. I'm
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          2  a New York City official. I'm also a public servant.

          3  I am also a tow truck owner and a driver and a

          4  Director of the Gasoline and Automotive Service

          5  Dealers Association, and I'm very proud to say, and

          6  I'm also a constituent of David Weprin, and I'm glad

          7  to see the representatives here, and Mr. Sanders and

          8  Mr. Addabbo from Southeast Queens. Good to see you.

          9                 I underwent a complete background

         10  check by the Department of Investigations and there

         11  exists no conflict of interest, and as a matter of

         12  fact, my different hats often compliment each other.

         13                 The Consumer Affairs Committee today

         14  will address proposed changes that were strongly

         15  recommended by my colleagues and me 15 years ago, so

         16  we are quite pleased to receive such a prompt

         17  response to our request.

         18                 I have a thought-provoking question

         19  to ask the members of the Committee. How do you

         20  expect the tow operators to abide by the letter of

         21  the law when the Department of Consumer Affairs, the

         22  Agency charged with enforcing the law, has clouded

         23  the law for years. I specifically refer to the

         24  numerous request to DCA by several industry

         25  associations and many tow operators to appoint a new
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          2  tow advisory board, as has been mentioned several

          3  times, and is mandated by Section 20-526 of Title 20

          4  of the Administrative Code of the City of New York.

          5  This agency has refused to comply with that mandate.

          6  And we may have heard of Commissioner Pauline Toole

          7  say something earlier about ask the industry, what

          8  that really means is they should have had the Board

          9  and they should have asked the industry, which was

         10  also brought out quite clearly before.

         11                 This hearing today is the first

         12  hearing in several years concerning the towing

         13  industry. For many years our industry has fought to

         14  ensure that we work together with government to

         15  protect the interest of the public.

         16                 Now that very last we fought so hard

         17  to establish is knowingly and deliberately being

         18  disregarded. We are here today to address only a

         19  minor technical change that will in no way benefit

         20  the public. Instead we should be aggressively

         21  addressing the most serious problems facing the

         22  residents and visitors of this City. They are our

         23  relatives, neighbors, friends.

         24                 As an example, I am referring to the

         25  egregious practice of chasing, which continues to
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          2  proliferate throughout the five boroughs.

          3                 Usually chasing is accompanied by

          4  many other illegal activities. I believe this body

          5  has a commitment to the people to preserve our

          6  quality of life. As a representative of both the

          7  towing industry and the public, I suggest the

          8  following three subjects be addressed as soon as

          9  possible to offer additional protection to people.

         10                 Number one, organize a task force

         11  with representatives from DCA, NYPD and members of

         12  the towing industry to eliminate once and for all

         13  wreck chasing permanently.

         14                 I should add here that I'm quite

         15  disappointed. As you know, the DARP Program and the

         16  ROTOW program are run by the Police Department, and

         17  I don't see any representatives here of the Police

         18  Department. It may be a good idea when we convene

         19  again, December 1st or whenever, the Police

         20  Department can get an invitation.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I just want the

         22  record to indicate that we're also disappointed. We

         23  had asked them to come. They said they were going to

         24  bring us written testimony. There is somebody from

         25  the Administration sitting behind us, can take this
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          2  back to them, but we didn't get the written

          3  testimony. So, I understand that.

          4                 Hopefully, they will, by December

          5  31st -- I mean, December 1st, respect the request of

          6  this Committee. If not, we'll take another route.

          7                 MR. RUBENFELD: I'm glad to hear that

          8  the Committee wasn't remiss in doing what they

          9  should have been doing.

         10                 Secondly, I'd like to see:

         11                 - to improve the communications

         12  between industry and the NYPD to expedite the police

         13  paperwork regarding the ROTOW program and eliminate

         14  the interminable delay at the NYPD autopound.

         15                 - enhanced communication with police

         16  productivity, both uniformed and civilian.

         17                 The public would certainly benefit by

         18  the reduction in the number of days it now takes to

         19  access the necessary paperwork for vehicle

         20  redemption, thereby saving the consumer the cost of

         21  additional storage fees.

         22                 And lastly, we really should go back

         23  to the SARD program. This was accepted by the

         24  police, by the public, by the tow industry, and it

         25  got sunsetted all of a sudden out of nowhere.
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          2                 Now, it has to replace the DARP

          3  program. The DARP program has disadvantaged the

          4  citizens of New York City for a long time. It's been

          5  fatally flawed since its inception in 1988.

          6                 The program has cost the City

          7  millions of dollars, in police personnel man hours,

          8  wasted at the accident scene waiting for the

          9  assigned tow truck. Certainly the more cost

         10  effective SARD program should be brought back.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rubenfeld,

         12  we're going to look into that. Because of the time,

         13  and I'm not sure we have to listen to all of that,

         14  but I've asked the Counsel to look at what that

         15  program was, and if it makes sense to try to discuss

         16  with DCA bringing that program back.

         17                 The concern that I have is in the

         18  legislation for DARP, I understand that they have a

         19  30-minute requirement or they could lose their

         20  license. So, you're suggesting that the majority of

         21  time people have to wait more than 30 minutes?

         22                 MR. RUBENFELD: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You also signed in

         24  favor of legislation 562, so are you in support of

         25  this legislation?
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          2                 MR. RUBENFELD: I am in support of the

          3  legislation, but I was a little distressed when I

          4  heard Commissioner Toole make an arbitrary decision

          5  for the whole Department when she said they're not

          6  going to grant any extensions. I think that would be

          7  a nice way to get out of it, and I don't see why

          8  they have to all of a sudden say we're not going to

          9  grant an extension. An extension will solve all the

         10  problems.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: An extension on the

         12  truck inspections you mean?

         13                 MR. RUBENFELD: It could be an

         14  extension on the inspection, it could be an

         15  extension on the paperwork. Both.

         16                 Whatever is tolerable. I'll go for

         17  both.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see, okay.

         19                 Council member, I have several

         20  questions but then Council Member Addabbo, then

         21  Council Member Barron.

         22                 If I may, Joe, first of all, we're

         23  also looking at these questions in the short period,

         24  we need to be finished here by 3:15, but about the

         25  industry across the board. Okay, thank you.
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          2                 MR. RUBENFELD: Okay, can I just

          3  finish my presentation, please?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'll give you 30

          5  seconds.

          6                 MR. RUBENFELD: I'll do it in less.

          7                 I wonder whether we can bear in mind

          8  all those statements about how the industry doesn't

          9  follow the law, and such a percentage of

         10  law-breakers or what have you. It's baloney. If

         11  that's such a high percentage, if 60, 80, I don't

         12  know what percentage they mentioned, doesn't follow

         13  the law, I think it stands to reason that there's

         14  something wrong with the law, and there has been no

         15  communication between the industry and the law

         16  makers, the legislators here and the DCA at the

         17  Administration.

         18                 The problem is not with the industry,

         19  the problem is with the law.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         21  Addabbo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 And thank you very much to the panel

         25  for your time and testimony today.

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 I have actually two general questions

          3  that hopefully you could all answer briefly.

          4                 The first one is, since I understand

          5  that DCA sent out a notice for the renewal, why such

          6  a large vast of those in the industry did not

          7  respond to it? That's number one, why not responding

          8  to the notice.

          9                 And number two, if you had problems

         10  with the DCA, have you reached out to them to try

         11  and cure these problems? If you have reached out to

         12  them, who did you speak to? If you have not reached

         13  out to DCA, why not?

         14                 MR. TEITLER: First, on reaching out.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You need to

         16  identify yourself.

         17                 MR. TEITLER: I'm Norman Teitler, from

         18  the Metropolitan New York Towing Association.

         19                 Reaching out. We send letters to the

         20  Commissioner with regularity. We have asked since

         21  this Commissioner assumed office to meet with her,

         22  just as a general courtesy. I have met at meetings

         23  with every Commissioner since 1987, I have never met

         24  the Commissioner personally.

         25                 We get responses, sometimes that
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          2  answer our questions, and sometimes say nothing.

          3                 When towing companies renew their

          4  licenses, let's understand, beside the $600, most of

          5  the insurance in this industry expires around this

          6  time, and I don't know if this Committee is aware

          7  but a tow truck, per truck cost to insure anywhere

          8  between seven and $10,000 per truck. I have four

          9  trucks, I have $40,000 of insurance on top of what I

         10  have to give DCA.

         11                 So, it isn't that owners don't know

         12  that they have to have their paperwork in by

         13  December 31st, since no one, because they never met

         14  with industry, knew what the requirements would be

         15  and paperwork, because the specific forms and

         16  there's reinspection until some time toward the end

         17  of October, people are now putting their paperwork

         18  together, and trying to save and raise the money to

         19  pay DCA, pay their insurance brokers, pay their

         20  workers compensation insurance so it's all current.

         21  So, it isn't that the people in our industry don't

         22  want to renew. They were going to renew, or the bulk

         23  of them will renew before December 31st. It's these,

         24  as the Chair says --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I think the
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          2  question is are they going to renew before December

          3  1st, not December 31st.

          4                 MR. TEITLER: It is my belief that 75

          5  percent or more of this industry will not be able to

          6  renew their paperwork submitted before December 1st.

          7  There are only 34 business days left before January

          8  1st. Business days. And most of these companies,

          9  when you're a mom and pop operation, you're in the

         10  truck, driving the truck, trying to earn a living so

         11  you can pay your other driver and your expenses

         12  during the day. It's unfortunate, but insurance

         13  company brokers do not work at night. DCA doesn't

         14  work at night. DMV doesn't work at night. So, when

         15  you take the time, you take it out from your income

         16  revenue day, generating day.

         17                 So, our belief is that 95 or 98

         18  percent of the people, in fact I believe 99 percent

         19  of the people who intend to renew, because some

         20  people won't renew just because they're out of

         21  business, will renew before December 31st, but I

         22  don't believe 75 percent of the companies will be

         23  able to renew before December 1st.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Council

         25  Member Addabbo.
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          2                 Was there someone else that wanted to

          3  respond too?

          4                 MR. RUBENFELD: Yes, on the reaching

          5  out, I'm glad to see that Commissioner Mintz is

          6  here, because I'm sure he'll verify the fact that

          7  I've been burning up the phone wires there for many,

          8  many months, long before maternity leave and what

          9  have you about convening and appointing a tow

         10  advisory board. If I'm not saying something that

         11  isn't so, I'm sure you'll voice your objection.

         12                 And as far as the renewing, in that

         13  what DCA calls a timely fashion, it's a personal

         14  habit of myself and I think many, many other people,

         15  to try and pay a large bill at the last minute.

         16                 Why would I want to spend -- and I'm

         17  a small operator, so my bill with DCA is only like

         18  $2,500, but why would I want to give them $2,500 in

         19  October, when actually I know I can give it to them

         20  two months later?

         21                 Now, there are people in the room

         22  here that spend --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rubenfeld, I

         24  just got through telling you that the last minute is

         25  the end of October, the last minute changed. You
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          2  can't give it to them anymore -- I understand what

          3  you're saying about waiting til the last minute, but

          4  there's a new last minute, so your argument doesn't

          5  hold up.

          6                 They told you that last time, that

          7  you have to put these papers in order to get a

          8  guarantee renewal. That's very simple. So the last

          9  minuted moved, that's all.

         10                 MR. RUBENFELD: I don't think I agree

         11  with that statement, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, you may not

         13  agree with it, but I think what I've heard them

         14  testify to is the fact that if they don't have your

         15  paperwork and your money by a certain date, there is

         16  no guarantee that your trucks will be able to be on

         17  the road, properly licensed, by the first of the

         18  year.

         19                 MR. RUBENFELD: I think you heard me

         20  say that I didn't like that arbitrary decision

         21  that's taken out of nowhere for them to say that's

         22  the final say.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, you don't

         24  like the arbitrariness of it, and it seems to me

         25  that we are now, the Tow Advisory Board, since it
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          2  hasn't met and we're having all of these issues

          3  earthed here, so maybe we ought to have the Mayor

          4  just constitute this thing, this whole Committee, as

          5  the Advisory Board and let Addabbo Chair it.

          6                 MR. RUBENFELD: I'll second that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay? Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Barron.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, I just

         10  wanted to get -- it's getting a little clear now, I

         11  thought this was a little problem, but this is a

         12  serious, serious issue.

         13                 Their testimony is that the reason

         14  why the companies wait til the last minute, because

         15  first of all they've got to earn a living each and

         16  every day, and this process hurts their

         17  revenue-generating opportunity prior to December

         18  1st, or even the later the better --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, Council

         20  member.

         21                 Sir, you have to sit down. No, sir,

         22  you have to sit down. Sir, I'm going to ask the

         23  Sergeant-At-Arms to help you sit down. Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair.
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          2                 So, basically without the extension,

          3  then it's a major problem because you're paying a

          4  lot per truck. It's not just like a $600 for the

          5  company, but it's $600 per truck, plus the money

          6  that you would lose trying to get all your trucks

          7  inspected on a particular day, take that out, plus

          8  the insurance, and in addition to other kinds of

          9  things happening, so it's just not like this is some

         10  logistical thing that you're ignoring, but -- I'm

         11  trying to get an understanding. So, you're basically

         12  saying we're going to make a living here and the

         13  process should be helpful to us making a living, to

         14  us surviving. So, let's work out a process where, as

         15  you said, where you inspect or get the license for

         16  the driver or the truck, everybody on the same time,

         17  and as you said, maybe extend so that people are

         18  going to have an opportunity to work this out, so

         19  that's your still able to generate revenue while

         20  you're dealing with all of these different numerous

         21  costs for running of businesses and paying insurance

         22  and license.

         23                 And is that basically --

         24                 MR. TEITLER: That's basically --

         25  especially since this is the first time, since 1989,
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          2  where they've required the trucks to be reinspected

          3  in order for you to be on the street.

          4                 The medallion is exactly basically

          5  the size of a taxicab medallion --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry. The

          7  trucks now have to be inspected every other year; is

          8  that right?

          9                 MR. TEITLER: No, the trucks have to

         10  be inspected whenever the inspectors show up, and

         11  the --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You don't now have

         13  to take your truck in for a renewal?

         14                 MR. TEITLER: No, never before.

         15                 Now you have to do it this year for

         16  the first time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, go ahead. I'm

         18  sorry, Council Member.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: They were

         20  coming to you?

         21                 MR. TEITLER: No. Prior to this they

         22  were coming to you, or if it was a replacement

         23  truck, for which, in other words, you had a truck,

         24  it had a medallion on it, that truck broke or you

         25  traded it in onto the better truck.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.

          3                 MR. TEITLER: You would put the

          4  paperwork in. They would give you a letter allowing

          5  you to drive the truck to the inspection station to

          6  be inspected, and that was usually within a few

          7  days.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.

          9                 MR. TEITLER: But your truck was on

         10  the road earning money.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.

         12                 MR. TEITLER: And then during the

         13  year, they would either come out and reinspect your

         14  business and trucks, or DCA inspector has the right

         15  to stop a tow truck like a taxicab inspector does on

         16  the street at any time and inspect the truck --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And what that

         18  does for you, it allows you to keep generating your

         19  revenue.

         20                 MR. TEITLER: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: As inspections

         22  occur, as opposed to the inspection process, hurting

         23  you by having all come in on some day, in some

         24  place, you got 15 trucks, ten trucks, two trucks,

         25  all your trucks are off the streets and you've got
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          2  to deal with it for that day whatever length of time

          3  it takes, so you're losing revenue, at the same time

          4  you can play all these other things, and you're

          5  saying we need to have a process that allows you to

          6  make the revenue and also gets trucks inspected in a

          7  timely fashion.

          8                 MR. TEITLER: Exactly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right.

         10  Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Before I ask for

         12  the last two people to come up, Commissioner Toole,

         13  and just for the record, I'm quite neutral on all

         14  the subjects that are being discussed today, I'm

         15  just trying to understand more of the problem. Yes,

         16  thank you, Council member, and we are going to be

         17  out of here at 3:15.  Commissioner Toole testified

         18  that -- "but this is a glimpse of the treatment

         19  consumers all too often receive from towing

         20  companies," this is a list of all the terrible

         21  things that have happened, "these outstanding

         22  violations have been issued to 250 different towing

         23  companies. This is 40 percent of all the licensed

         24  towing companies, there is not another licensed

         25  industry that even comes close to having that many
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          2  members cited for violating laws under which they

          3  are permitted to operate."

          4                 Now, that sounds to me like a

          5  statement of fact. So, I haven't heard any of you

          6  address that statement.

          7                 MR. O'CONNELL: And I'm glad that you

          8  brought it up.

          9                 The violations, probably 90 percent

         10  of them, all involve failures to respond to police

         11  calls. If you fail to respond to three police calls,

         12  you're cited for a violation. There has been a

         13  horrendous backlog of these complaints, they compile

         14  them all together and they have taken these

         15  complaints to the industry, fines that they're

         16  willing to compromise for, $1,000 per violation,

         17  often range into the hundreds of thousands of

         18  dollars.

         19                 So, these are not horrible consumer

         20  abuses. There are types of violations that often

         21  time there is a legitimate reason for failing to

         22  make the call, but you'll find that the vast

         23  majority of those cases are of that nature.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Anybody

         25  else want to comment on that?
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          2                 MR. TEITLER: Our industry performs

          3  almost two and a half million tows a year. I heard

          4  the agency say they had under 300 complaints. That's

          5  not even one-ten-thousandth percent of the tows we

          6  perform.

          7                 The vast bulk of our industry is

          8  law-abiding, and tries to earn a simple living. DCA

          9  received from the Police Department a computer

         10  printout of people who didn't accept DARP calls, and

         11  decided to institute hearings. The industry banded

         12  together and joined in a legal action to try to stop

         13  that or to prevent something. No one came to

         14  industry to discuss it, they came up with a fine

         15  structure that was onerous to almost every single

         16  business person that it was proposed to.

         17                 There is a reason for that. Our

         18  Association has sent numerous letters to the Police

         19  Commissioner indicating that the DARP program needs

         20  to be fixed.

         21                 If the Police Department does not

         22  enforce the program as it was intended, you can't

         23  blame this Council, you can't blame the consumers,

         24  you can't blame the industry.

         25                 If I go out and buy equipment, pay
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          2  medallion cost in insurance, and then because the

          3  Police Department doesn't enforce the program

          4  properly and I receive no work, I don't have the

          5  money to pay for my insurance or my medallions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Teitler, I

          7  would appreciate it if you would give this Committee

          8  copies of those suggestions that you made to the

          9  Police Department, and if you could do that in a

         10  timely fashion before the 1st of December when I'm

         11  looking forward to seeing the police, we'd

         12  appreciate that.

         13                 MR. TEITLER: I will.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But Mr. Rubenfeld

         15  said that he felt that chasing was still a major

         16  issue in the industry. Now, I don't hear -- I think

         17  you can get a violation for that, can't you?

         18                 MR. TEITLER: Yes, you can.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. So, Mr.

         20  Rubenfeld seems to be someone well respected in the

         21  industry, Mr. O'Connell is nodding his head that

         22  this is a problem.

         23                 MR. TEITLER: This is a problem.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So what are we

         25  doing about that? You represent part of the
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          2  industry, right?

          3                 MR. TEITLER: We --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If I ask people out

          5  here which concept is more onerous, is to have to

          6  deal with the tow truck driver or a dentist, I think

          7  that, you know, it would probably be a close call

          8  one way or the other, so why is that? It's not a

          9  touchy-feely industry and he's saying that the

         10  chasing is still going on. So, what do you have to

         11  say?

         12                 MR. TEITLER: Chasing, this Council,

         13  in cooperation with industry a number of years ago

         14  practically eliminated chasing from the streets of

         15  New York City. And then industry have a program to

         16  abide by which the Police Department, over a period

         17  of time, now has failed to enforce. And what happens

         18  is, I can tell you there are police divisions in

         19  this City where chasing does not exist. And I can

         20  tell you there are police divisions in --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And that's because

         22  in those precincts they enforce it?

         23                 MR. TEITLER: The captain or inspector

         24  of those precincts or divisions, it's important to

         25  him that nobody chase, and I can tell you there are
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          2  precincts and divisions in this City where chasing

          3  is rampant, because it is not important to the

          4  police captain or inspector in that precinct to stop

          5  it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you want to tell

          7  us what boroughs or communities we're talking about?

          8                 MR. TEITLER: I can tell you just

          9  simply there's a portion, and I don't have, I'm not

         10  going to pick numbers off my head, but I can tell

         11  you there are areas in the North Bronx and there are

         12  areas in mid-Brooklyn where this problem is very

         13  rampant. And my biggest fear as head of the industry

         14  is that for some civilian or pedestrian to be hit by

         15  a speeding tow truck or by an unlicensed tow truck

         16  or make the front page, then we have a demand for

         17  legislation, for which we could have eliminated this

         18  program well in advance.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: In what

         20  neighborhoods is the chasing minimal?

         21                 MR. TEITLER: In Manhattan it

         22  practically doesn't exist. In certain areas of South

         23  Brooklyn. It didn't exist in Staten Island but it's

         24  beginning to return. We hear this from the companies

         25  who are on the program today. And I will definitely
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          2  get to the Council and every member of the Council

          3  the information on the DARP program and possible

          4  solutions and also on the rate increases for the

          5  towers so you'll have some background material in

          6  making decisions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We are going to

          8  have another hearing about this focusing on chasing

          9  and this issue of violation, so I want to thank you

         10  all very much for coming.

         11                 Did you have one last word, Mr.

         12  Connell?

         13                 MR. O'CONNELL: Just one word on that

         14  issue. It's an attitude issue, when a police officer

         15  arrives at the scene of an accident, his primary

         16  focus is to get that car out of the road. If a tow

         17  truck shows up, he's going to go with the first

         18  truck, whether it's a DARP responder or someone

         19  else, and that's the problem with chasing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Thank

         21  you, all. The last panel is Mr. Rude and Mr. Terico,

         22  at my request.

         23                 Sir, have a seat. Okay, thank you.

         24                 Mr. Terico, I appreciate your coming.

         25  So, would you turn the light off, that means the
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          2  microphone is on. Identify yourself as you did on

          3  here, and tell us about your experience of getting

          4  your truck inspected.

          5                 MR. TERICO: Hi. My name is Joe

          6  Terico, I'm President of Crown Towing Service,

          7  Incorporated.

          8                 I brought three trucks out to the

          9  Department of Consumer Affairs testing station.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: When was that, sir?

         11                 MR. TERICO: In Brooklyn.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: When?

         13                 MR. TERICO: Oh, this morning. I had

         14  an 8:00 or 9:00 appointment out there. And they

         15  inspected the vehicles, and I only received two

         16  medallions, and no cab cards at all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No what?

         18                 MR. TERICO: No cab cards.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Cab cards.

         20                 MR. TERICO: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. I'm just

         22  trying to make sure the record here is correct.

         23                 MR. TERICO: And basically that was

         24  it. I mean, the inspection went okay, but they

         25  didn't have the proper documents that I need that
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          2  they said they were going to have on hand.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Did they offer you

          4  an explanation?

          5                 MR. TERICO: They said -- it was kind

          6  of a fumbling explanation. You know, they said they

          7  didn't have a cover sheet. I didn't question them

          8  what a cover sheet was. But they did say they didn't

          9  have a cover sheet. They had summer medallions, they

         10  didn't have the 6,000 numbers of the medallions,

         11  they only had the 5,700 numbers of the medallions,

         12  and that's about basically what I could get out of

         13  them.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And when did they

         15  say that you had to come back?

         16                 MR. TERICO: They didn't say I had to

         17  come back, they said they could possibly bring one

         18  medallion to my location, and that they were

         19  basically going to mail the three cab cards.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So I think that's

         21  somewhat of an accommodation to this, right?

         22                 MR. TERICO: Somewhat of an

         23  accommodation, but I guess they were supposed to

         24  have everything there when we were ready as the

         25  trucks were being brought.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But it's really not

          3  going to take a lot extra time on your part for this

          4  to get corrected.

          5                 MR. TERICO: I hope not, unless they

          6  tell me I have to come back out there with the

          7  trucks again.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I wouldn't imagine

          9  after this that that's what they're going to tell

         10  you.

         11                 How long, you got there at 8:00 in

         12  the morning?

         13                 MR. TERICO: I got there about nine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, and you had

         15  three trucks?

         16                 MR. TERICO: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What time was this

         18  finished?

         19                 MR. TERICO: About 10:30.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So about a half an

         21  hour a truck?

         22                 MR. TERICO: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Anything else you want to add to
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          2  everything you've heard?

          3                 MR. TERICO: No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          5                 Mr. Rude.

          6                 MR. RUDE: I don't mean to be rude. I

          7  was born that way. I've been here now since 1951. I

          8  also, by the misfortunate of losing three Supreme

          9  Court justices, would not be here today. We got two

         10  out of the necessary five, that three more we

         11  wouldn't be here today with medallions.

         12                 I'm the one that took the City to the

         13  US Supreme Court. The society did it.

         14                 You asked about chasing. I know you

         15  want to get out of here in five minutes --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rude, for the

         17  record, you need to tell us your name and who you

         18  represent.

         19                 MR. RUDE: I'm sorry. My name is

         20  Murray Rude, I represent the Society of Citizens for

         21  Free Choice in Towing, Incorporated. The article I

         22  just gave you is coincidental and today's newspaper

         23  a new reporter wrote about what's happening to the

         24  owners of cars when they have an accident. Uncle

         25  Sam, you'll see that's printed, it says, "You have a
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          2  constitutional bill that's written, it's called your

          3  'Constitutional Bill of Rights.'" On every job

          4  slip, but the funny thing is, when you come over to

          5  an accident, the tow guy hands you a slip like this

          6  (indicating). The constitutional part is buried.

          7                 The other thing about chasing is,

          8  it's federally illegal. Have your staff check into

          9  the federal law that says under the Federal

         10  Communications Act you cannot respond to an accident

         11  and earn a living by scanning the police radios.

         12  That's how chasing has been going on since I've been

         13  a little boy, and I'm 76 years old, and I brag I'm

         14  on a tow truck since 12 and a half driving,

         15  including with a letter from a captain during the

         16  war years moving air raid war equipment. But the

         17  whole question here is, my father taught me, even

         18  though I left him 30 some odd years ago, there is no

         19  clock, and there is no calendar in the tow business.

         20  When they make an appointment to come for the

         21  certain time, at a certain date, you can't always do

         22  it in the tow business because if the call comes in,

         23  if you do not service that customer, you lose a

         24  customer. The economy in this City, and I'll name

         25  them and I told them so at a fundraiser, Mayor
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          2  Lindsay, when he refused to sign the containerport

          3  bill and it went to Jersey, we lost our trains, we

          4  lost our trucking, we lost manufacturing, and then

          5  all these wars that have come down have killed the

          6  economy. Money is dead tight. I just lost three

          7  truck mechanics that I've known for 20 years, just

          8  packed up during the night, closed the doors and

          9  walked away leaving me, owing me a lot of money.

         10                 When you say that time of year they

         11  won't do this, they won't do that, they're holding a

         12  gun to your head, pardon my expression. I've lived

         13  with a gun to my head a whole lifetime in different

         14  ways, what I'm trying to bring out is this Council's

         15  Committee and the other Council committees that knew

         16  me and knew that I talk a lot, but what I'm trying

         17  to bring out is, yes, I wrote notes, that's what

         18  I've done my whole life, I write notes of what

         19  everybody says. The first thing is that you want

         20  chasing, see that the police enforce the -- go

         21  around to these shops, if they got a police radio in

         22  there, which they used to do, pull the radio and

         23  take the medallion away for a week or ten days,

         24  they'll stop chasing. Do you understand what I'm

         25  saying? Take that police radio away. Yes, they're
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          2  chasing by cars, but in order to chase by car, yet

          3  in here you read about the 15,000 pound law. I had a

          4  letter from a chief of patrol stating that my

          5  customer wants me, with a truck over 15,000 pounds,

          6  they have the right, which was upheld by federal

          7  Judge Denise Cody, right across the street in

          8  Federal Court, in one of our Federal Court cases.

          9  What I'm trying to bring out is the officers said,

         10  oh, that's he ex-chief of patrol. I went and got a

         11  brand new letter from the new chief of patrol, and

         12  guess what? Half the officers are ignoring that

         13  letter, the same way the article from the paper

         14  wrote that their cards are being taking away and the

         15  people are getting their head handed to them. Yet,

         16  if you read that thing you have, it's written right

         17  on that job slip, the owner's bill of rights, the

         18  City should see that every owner who has an accident

         19  has the right to read his bill of rights that says

         20  that he can be towed to where he wants to go.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rude, you have

         22  to wrap up.

         23                 MR. RUDE: The whole thing is the

         24  renewal. The state makes, as you brought it out, the

         25  State makes it inspect our vehicles, in fact, very
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          2  tough now with the emissions law, every year. The

          3  City is not equipped to do our truck inspections,

          4  really. They check your horn, they check this, they

          5  check that, but they're not mechanical people. What

          6  I'm trying to bring out is, we never did -- once we

          7  got our medallion, we had it on. We just kept paying

          8  our money every year to the City. We would like to

          9  continue doing that. You want to make some sort of

         10  change, spread it out like you say. You're hitting

         11  us at the end of the year, the wintertime. This is

         12  possibly between very hot weather and very cold

         13  weather is when the tow men have an opportunity to

         14  make a dollar. If he's going to sit even a half hour

         15  sometimes, he's got to travel from the Bronx, like

         16  this gentleman did, all the way to Greenpoint for

         17  that half our inspection, yet Mr. Teitler and the

         18  others brought out that we are inspected, they

         19  cruise.

         20                 I was doing a trailer, I'll get there

         21  in a minute, I was doing a trailer job for Schneider

         22  National, and two inspectors were doing check, a new

         23  man, they came over to me, said, Mr. Rude, we're

         24  going to check you out again. They looked at my

         25  trucks. What I'm trying to bring out, they are doing
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          2  inspections, but the renewal should be, it's tough

          3  enough to give them the $600 every two years, you

          4  got the $300 a year sticker. I came up with a word,

          5  it's a disease, why I can talk, because as I said,

          6  I'm on a truck since 12 and a half, it's called

          7  "help." We cannot get help. We can't get people

          8  with --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rude, I have

         10  your point.

         11                 MR. RUDE: I'm sorry.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's all right.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. RUDE: Will you allow me? I'm

         15  sorry. You said you were going to have another

         16  meeting, could I then be allowed at the beginning?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         18                 MR. RUDE: I'm sorry, because --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We will accommodate

         20  you.

         21                 MR. RUDE: I'm wearing a hat, I'm not

         22  out of disrespect for you. I was just in Chatanooga,

         23  I don't travel too much. But I'm part of what they

         24  call, and I wear it very proudly, the Towing Hall of

         25  Fame. We just moved to a new building. I should have
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          2  taken my hat off. I'm sorry for the young lady. No

          3  disrespect. But I'm very proud of this towing thing.

          4  This is for the whole country of tow men from all

          5  over the country, to be a member or be into the Hall

          6  of Fame. I'm lucky, I'm in the Hall of Fame.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, you have been

          8  at it for a very long time, I think you deserve it.

          9                 Thank you very much for coming, and

         10  we'll certainly try to --

         11                 MR. RUDE: One more thing. The board

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Rude, I want

         14  you to do me a favor, have a glass of water over

         15  here, okay? The Sergeant will help him, okay? Thank

         16  you.

         17                 We will have another hearing on

         18  December 1st. Thank you very much. This hearing is

         19  adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 3:15 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 10th day of November 2003.
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